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CHAIR MATEO: The meeting of the Housing and Human Services Committee for
March 21, 2005 will reconvene. Good morning, Members. Members present
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with us, the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Member Charmaine Tavares,
Member Joseph Pontanilla, and though not a Member of the Committee, we
welcome the Hana representative, Mr. Carroll with us this morning. Staff, yeah,
you're on the opposite end. Good morning. Staff present with us this morning is
Lance Taguchi, our Committee Analyst; Yvette Bantilan, our Secretary, and
sitting in as well the Analyst Scott Jensen. Representing the Department with us
this morning, from the Department of Housing and Human Concerns we have the
Director Alice Lee, also Mr. Ed Okubo, from Public Works Mr. Mike Miyamoto,
and Planning, we have Robyn Loudermilk also with us this morning. Thank you
all for, for being with us.
And, Members, just as a note, public testimony was closed on March 18th at our
meeting in Hana. So what's before us this morning, the 201G application for the
development of the Self-Help Housing Corporation of Hawaii's proposed Helani
Gardens Subdivision II project in Hana. The project proposes 14-single family
units for families with incomes of 80 percent of the median income and lower.
And to provide a broader scope of the proposed project, I will ask the Executive
Director of the Self-Help Housing Corporation of Hawaii, Ms. Claudia Shay, who
along with her consultants, who she will introduce in her own accord, will be
doing a briefing of the project. As well as, Mrs. Shay, at the testimonies in Hana
there were several questions that we requested that you also respond to, and if you
can also do that during this segment as well. So good morning and thank you for
being here, Ms. Shay.
MS. SHAY: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee on Housing and
Human Concerns, as well as other Members of the Council. Aloha. The
Self-Help Housing Corporation of Hawaii is developing approximately five-acre
parcel in Hana into a 14-10t subdivision of 10;000 square foot lots. I've supplied
you with appendices, which are also included in the 201G application, but I've put
them on the back of this memo to, to make it handier for you. So Appendix A is
the 14-10t subdivision for your perusal.
Upon completion of the infrastructure, Self-Help Housing will provide technical
assistance to 14 low income families to build their own houses through the team
self-help housing methods, method. Of the 14 families, six families will have
incomes below 50 percent of the median, and eight families will have incomes
below 80 percent of the median.
Self-Help is submitting a 201G application to the County of Maui to expedite the
approval of the subdivision and to obtain exemptions for the following--and these
are also itemized on Appendix B, which was prepared by Corporation Counsel as
an amendment to the 201G application. The first exemption, State Land Use
District Boundary from Urban to Rural, from Rural to Urban. The second,
community plan amendment. It presently designated as Rural. I want, I want to
utilize it as Single Family. Third one is change in zoning. Presently, Rural
half-acre lots. We want to build at R-3 density, 10,000 square foot lots. Deletion
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of curb, gutters, and sidewalks, which is now congruent with the Hana
Community Design Guidelines. And the fifth amen ... , exemption, park dedication
or fee deletion, and this will save $56,000 to the project. We also attempted to
delete the, or to be exempted from the water systems facilities, charge and this
was ruled that it was not possible through the present 201G law.
Self-Help is also responding to issues that were bought up at the public hearing in
th
Hana on March 16 • The first issue was high housing cost, and I refer you to
Appendix C, which is the Sources and Uses Statement.
Speakers thought that $182,000 was too expensive for Hana families to afford.
They said the land was donated. They compared the project to a Hawaiian
Homeland Project in Kula to a fee simple project in Hana. There's no comparison
between leasehold on Hawaiian Homestead land where you don't pay for the
house or you don't pay for the land or the infrastructure to a fee-simple project in
Hana. Self-Help Housing Corporation is a developer in both projects, and is in,
is, in fact, building 21 houses in Kula and knows the cost.
First of all, the land is not donated. The land is $450,000 for the raw land, which
is still about a 50 percent savings. But the infrastructure is going to be quite
costly in the project, and it's noted on the Sources and Uses Statement. So the
house and lot package for three and four bedroom, two bath, double wall houses
will be $182,000 fee simple. This budget is as low as you could possibly go. It's
basically because of the inaccessibility of Hana that the costs are so expensive.
But Self-Help has procured zero percent financing as well as grants. All the
pre-development costs, part of the infrastructure, and the technical assistance cost
during residential construction are all grants and not charged to the project.
What is, what is important to remember is that even though it's $182,000
amortized over 33 years, it will not be at 6 percent interest. Self-Help Housing is
procuring RD 502 financing in which the families pay 1 to 6 percent interest
depending on their incomes. Therefore, in an annual recertification process, the
families' monthly mortgage payment will be adjusted to their income. So it's
always affordable to their income. So, for example, a family of $28,000 for a
family of four, they would pay $541 a month for their mortgage payment, $641
for the principal, interest, taxes, and insurance or 27 percent of their monthly
income. A family of six whose income is $35,000 a year would pay $641 a
month for the principle, interest, taxes, and insurance, which is 22 percent of their
monthly income.
The other issue that was brought up was the flood area. The Self-Help engineer
has addressed the issue of flooding and drainage in a drainage report, which is
Appendix V of the 201E, 201G application. It was also discussed in the
Environmental Assessment and the 201G application on Pages 17, 18, 22, 23, 35,
46, 49, Appendix V, and Figures 7A and B. Figures 7A and B indicates that the
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project is in Flood Zone C, which is an area of minimal flooding. Kawaipapa
Stream, which borders the property, is usually dry throughout the year. However,
during excessive rain, Kawaipapa Stream can run over its bank on the back part of
a few of the mauka lots. The Stream has overflowed because of excessive debris
in the gulch getting backed up in the small opening of the bridge. This problem
would be eliminated if the gulch were cleared out. Additionally, Self-Help
Housing realizing this has created very deep lots where the houses will be sited
forward towards the road away from the stream and the houses will be built on
post and pier foundations. There is no danger of flooding of the houses. This is
going to be more adequately addressed by our engineer.
Maui Electric Company substation. This is located in the front of the subdivision
about 130 linear feet from the residential area. It's been located here for several
years. Several years ago, there were two, there were two 1,000-kilowatt standby
electrical generators installed at the substation. These are only used when there's
a blackout in Hana and they are generated by diesel fuel. So there's no toxic or
hazardous emissions from these, from the substation. This was addressed in the
Environmental Assessment, and Appendix U, and in the 201G application in
Appendix U, and also on Pages 39 and 43.
The developers comprehensively described all the features of the project in the
EA and the 201G application. A significant amount of work has been completed
on this project. All of the surveying, soils engineering, flood and drainage study,
design of wastewater system, preliminary subdivision map, draft of construction
plans have all been completed. The Environmental Assessment was completed,
given to the County of Maui in June of 2003. After revisions, the County of Maui
approved it in June of 2004. The Federal Government approved it in July of
2004. The 201G application was given to the County in July 2003. After several
revisions, it was heard on March 16th and today, March 21 st.
Self-Help has raised all the funding for the project. We've recruited 120 families
interested in the project, interviewed 78, and we're providing them with financial
counseling at this time.
I've enclosed an implementation schedule of the project, Appendix D. From
today, we will proceed with the approval of the construction plans estimated in
April of 2005. Land acquisition by the end of April. Bid documents in May and
June, simultaneous with the loan packaging of the families. We intend to select
the contractor for the infrastructure in June. Proceed with the installation of the
infrastructure from July to October, simultaneously the Homeownership Course
with the families will proceed in September/October. And we intend to proceed
the residential construction from December to November.
If the application isn't approved, the project will not be able to proceed. And I
have my engineer with us today, Mr. Wayne Arakaki, who would be able to
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address the Council on the issues of the flood drainage and the Maui substation.
Wayne.
(note: long pause)
MR. ARAKAKI: My name is Wayne Arakaki. I'm an Engineer, and I'm working on this
project for Self-Help Housing. One of the concerns in this area was that
Kawaipapa Stream that flooding might occur on the project and then endanger,
endanger the homes. One of the things that, you know, there is flooding in that
area but, you know, one of the things that you need to see is that the Maui Electric
substation is located on a property that's, you know, lower, lower than the project
site and closer to the stream. And they have a couple containers for their
substation where they house generators and all that but, you know, flooding has
not occurred where it was damaged. So there's, there's no really, it's not a
problem. You know, where we're going to be building on the project site is well
away from the flood area. We tend, we will clean out the, the stream of all debris
while we're working on large boulders. And then we'll probably berm up the
sides of the subdivision to protect the, the banks and, you know, have adequate
setbacks of the buildings so in case there, the banks should overflow that the
buildings would have the safety margin for this area.
I have a map here. It's, I hope you can see it, but in the blue dash lines, that I
indicated is the lOO-year flood limits. The, the lOO-year flood limits is actually
located on the perimeter of the Self-Help Housing project site. So, you know,
again, we're going to be adding a setback for the dwellings and then that would,
would help in the safety of this project. But as you can see that the lOO-year flood
limits does not go through the project site. It, it goes across Maui Electric's
property, but, again, there hasn't been no damage from the Maui Electric
substation. If you have any questions at this time.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Shay, is this the consultant that, the only consultant that you'll be
having come forward this morning? Thank you. Then, then, Members, are there
any questions?
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, I got one.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Arakaki, I've gone through
the proposal that was given to us, and I see that part of the drainage plan is to
have injection wells located on each individual lots. How will the injection wells
work, and who's going to maintain the injection wells, and if there is a problem
with the septic tank and the injection wells as far as seepage going into the stream
itself?
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MR. ARAKAKI: Well, first, I'll take care of the dry wells. You know, it's not really an
injection well. Just to understand what is a dry, injection well, the State considers
the injection well if the diameter is smaller than your depth, then it's considered
an injection well. So, say that I had a hole that's 6 feet in diameter but 8 feet
deep. That would be considered an injection well. What we're going to be doing
is we're going to have something like a septic leeching field where it's actually
going to be like a bed, maybe 6 by 6, and it's probably only going be about 3 feet
deep. It's going to be graveled with perforated pipes, and then it's going to
actually percolate into the ground. And that's the, that's the runoff.
The, the other thing is the septic system that you folks were talking about. And
it's going to be almost similar as far as leeching is concerned. But, you know,
we'll follow the State Health Department requirements where we have to stay 50
feet away from the stream. And these septic systems usually normal is about a
three-feet culvert, but usually when I design this kind of system in the Hana area,
I go down to about five feet, and then that where there's, the leeching field would
not create any problems, health problems for the people or for the stream. The
leech area is also wrapped around geotech fabric. So, you know, the foreign
materials would, would be kept intact.
If, if you know in the Hana area, a lot of the area is actually cesspooled. You
know, septic system is relatively new in the Hana area. So, but we will be having
all septic systemed [sic] and, again, it's going to be Health approved and we'll
follow the State guidelines as far as the proper setbacks from Kawaipapa Stream.

VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: One more question, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: In regards to you said that you were going to do some
work on, on the banks facing the stream. How extensive is the work as far as
trying to shore up I guess the back lots of this subdivision?
MR. ARAKAKI: It's, it's primarily going to be an earth berm, and we're going to be
covering the earth berm with a geotech fabric so it's held in place, and then
extensive landscaping that would retain the soil but that's about the extent. It's
more to, as a protection, you know, in case there is something that I anticipate that
I feel that there is not going to be flooding over the project, but just as an added
safety measure.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. One more question in regards to Maui Electric's
substation in that location. One of the testifiers in Hana testified in regards to
electromagnetic field. Have you had any conversation with the power company
to ensure that the substation is properly grounded?
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MR. ARAKAKI: I did talk to Maui Electric and then they went through an EA,
Environmental Assessment, and they told me that there's no health problems or
health risk. You know, there was, I mean, that was about it as my conversation
with Maui Electric.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So nothing in writing from Maui Electric?
MR. ARAKAKI: We can get it in writing but, you know, again, you know, it wasn't like
a major concern for Maui Electric when we approached them.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, any additional questions?
Ms. Johnson. And for the record, the Chair would like to recognize the, Mrs.,
Ms. Johnson, her presence. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you. And I apologize for being late to
the meeting. And I'm sorry I could not attend the meeting in Hana. And if this
question has already been asked, I apologize, but I was going through some of the
design elements for the actual construction of the homes. And would either of
you have the information on what the height is because I noticed they're raised up
off the ground, what the height would be for just where the floor would be?
MS. SHAY: That'll be determined by the architect when we do the site plans and we'll
take into consideration the flooding in the back area of the lot, on the mauka lot,
so that it'll be a little bit higher post and pier construction. And we'll do that in
consultation with Rural Development. Rural Development is a Federal lender.
They do not build. They will not finance in flood areas. And they would have to
approve the design of the buildings. So that'll be in consultation and possibly a
structural engineer as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate that because in this particular
situation I think that might address some of the concerns as well.
MS. SHAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Particularly, for those areas that abut that flooding
area.
MS. SHAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you. In your Appendix C, that lists your
development costs.
MS. SHAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could, down under, under the construction cost, you
have residential construction at 1.3 million or so. Could you explain what that is?
Because it's apart from the 95,000 per ...
MS. SHAY: That's just the construction of the homes. It doesn't include the
construction, you know, taking out all of the infrastructure and so forth. Because
if you included that in the Rural Development 502 line then you would be doing a
duplicate cost within the Sources and Uses Statement. So the houses are $95,000
per unit. That's one house. Because the per unit costs are in the right-hand
column.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: So is that for, for materials?
MS. SHAY: Yes. And any subcontractors. And we'll be subcontracting the electrical
and plumbing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Plumbing. Okay.
MS. SHAY: Because of the Building Code that'll include the, we also subcontract
drywall, excavation, and masonry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. SHAY: But that's all the, the materials for the house, all the subcontractors, the
building permit, the water systems facilities charge, the septic tank system, that's
complete cost for everything. Although, I can build for, you know, $65,000 to
$70,000 in Kapalua and, and Kihei and so forth, it's just not feasible in Hana.
There's a large mark up for just shipping and materials. For one, concrete is going
to be very expensive.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
MS. SHAY: So you don't want to under budget.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I think that clears up a lot of concern about the
cost of the lots because it appears in the discussion that we're talking about buying
a lot with nothing.
MS. SHAY: Correct. That's right.
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COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Well, besides the infrastructure to support the
subdivision. But seeing this 95,000 allotment per, per lot for the house or for
materials and, and some of the subcontracting, that changes the perception I think
a lot.
MS. SHAY: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So you could say, okay, if you were just buying the
lot period and the people had to pay for everything else, the materials and their
subcontractors, you could almost take that 95,000, subtract it from the 182,000
that you have down there as the, the cost per lot and say that actually the lot itself
cost with the subdivision improvements is under $100,000.
MS. SHAY: Exactly. I really don't think you could do any better in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
MS. SHAY: I mean, we just finished a house and lot in Mahinahina for about $180,000.
You know, the lot was about $95,000. So, I mean it's, it's, you have to bring
everything in. Part of it on the infrastructure is the mobilization of a company,
you know, sufficient enough and, and adequately trained and having the right
equipment and so forth to build roads, get 95 percent compaction, and so forth. I
mean, if you have to mobilize a large company from Wailuku side that alone is
going to be costly, just in the mobilization. I'm going to try to use as many local
contractors as possible, but I'll be putting it out to bid and then, you know, going
through a bid selection process. But I really tried to write down as much of the
costs as possible. All of the shop money that you see on here that's U.S.
Department of HUD Self-Help Opportunities Program monies, that is a grant.
That, that is an outright grant to write down part of the cost of the infrastructure.
And, actually, this cost of the land at 492, that is a 50 percent discount. So we
really worked at trying to write down as many of the costs as possible. You don't
want to shortcut it on the house because, like I said, your mark up on going to
Hana is substantial.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
MS. SHAY: Actually, if we build it for less, it will be less for the families because we're
non-profit. There's no profit to be made here. So when I estimate a construction
budget, if the families build it for less than that, that's, that's what their loan is.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Uh-huh. Thank you. And I think that if it was
clearer to some of the testifiers in Hana how this was put together, I think there
would not be as much concern about the price of the housing. Because they were
just, I think alluding to the fact, they thought it was just lots with no
improvements other than subdivision type improvements like roads and drainage
and things like that. This makes a big difference, and I think this should be
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highlighted in the future so people do understand that it's not the lot that's
182,000. It contains a whole lot of other things, you know, including the
materials for building the houses and the, the specialty, you know, disciplines in
order to get the plumbing, electrical, and that kind of thing.
MS. SHAY: Yeah. Yeah. Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: The septic system.
MS. SHAY: As well as the septic tank and the ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Right.
MS. SHAY: ... water systems facilities. And as, as I had said in my presentation, it's
not going to be, you know, at 6 percent interest, if that's not affordable to their
income. It can be as low as 1 percent interest. So that's how I'm really able to
target people below 50 percent of the median income with no savings.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In your housing, in your housing construction part of
it, are you including a solar water-heating factor?
MS. SHAY: I haven't up to this point, but it's always possible and, you know, given the
cost of utilities, it's probably a good idea.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Could you perhaps figure out for us what that
cost might be to add solar water heating to each of those houses?
MS. SHAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And get that, get that figure to our Chair Mateo.
MS. SHAY: Sure. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Because, and during the budget, I think we're
going to be discussing the solar water heating initiative fund and we might have,
you know, an ability to, you know, somehow direct some monies toward this
project.
MS. SHAY: Oh, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: The other question I had was about,
buy-back provision for these?

IS

there a

MS. SHAY: There will be a ten-year buy-back provision, as well as Shared Appreciation
Equity on all of the properties.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. There's a Shared Appreciation Equity. Okay.
MS. SHAY: Yes. And the ten-year buy-back, first right of refusal to the County of Maui
within the first ten years. The Shared Equity Appreciation will only be the
increase in the cost of the land, not on the house because the house is built by the
families. And the Share Equity Appreciation runs in perpetuity.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Member Tavares. Members, any additional
questions for Ms. Shay? Seeing none. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Chair, one more question.
CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry. Ms. Shay. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. In regards to the applicants for these homes,
I understand that, you know, we're going to try and offer the people in Hana as the
first preference. Because you're using Federal dollars, how can we get around
that or how can you get around that?
MS. SHAY: Well, our policy is that we interview every and any family that applies for
the project. Then we go through a home interview process where we look at their
income, their debts, credit background, and their present living condition, and so
forth. As I think I might have explained at the last hearing, we go through a
screening committee. A screening committee comprised of someone from my
Board, someone from the community, and someone from a financial institution,
which chooses the families. Given that they all qualify by the lender's criterion,
we then choose by giving the priority to those most in need. Those of the lowest
income, those in substandard conditions, those in very overcrowded situations.
Now, because they have to put in 32 hours a week of labor to gain their sweat
equity, they would have to live in the community, number one, because of, you
know, they have to have proximity to the building site in order to be able to put in
the labor hours.
And, secondly, one of the issues that we look at is, and one of the questions on
our application is how long do you intend to stay in the area. Because there's a lot
of subsidies, a lot of Federal subsidies into this project, and we want those to be
utilized by families that are going to be, you know, interested in staying in the
community for, for a period of time. So, whereas, because we have Federal
money, we can't specifically say this is only for families, you know, who live in
Hana. Certainly, those are the families that we're, we're looking at that have the
dire need for the affordable housing, and they lived in the area, they've lived in
the area for a while, and their chances of remaining there are, are very high.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that information. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Shay, two, two quick questions. One was in Hana
we heard a concern relative to restrictions on ohana units. And then the second
question, if you can, after you respond to that is, again, could you once again
clarify the, the size of the lots for those units.
MS. SHAY: Oh, uh-huh. The lots run from about 10,000 square foot to 17,000 square
foot. There are 12,000, 14, you know, 16,000 depending on the configuration laid
out by the engineer. In terms of ohana units, I'm not really sure about ohana units.
We, we have no intention of ohana units. I don't know if it's something that's
approved for the Hana area for a lot that size. Is that your question?
CHAIR MATEO: No. I'm just following up on one of the questions that was asked in
Hana relative to whether or not there'll be restrictions on ohana units.
MS. SHAY: Oh, well, there wouldn't be any restrictions from our project .. (END OF
TAPE) . .. adequate infrastructure.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much. At this time, thank you very much,
Ms. Shay. And the Chair would like to ask the Department or give the
Department the opportunity to comment on the presentation as well as the overall
project itself. And I'd like to tum it over to Director Lee.
MS. LEE: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Members. The Department is in strong
support of this project. We believe that if there are any questions about ohana
units, that could be addressed with restrictive covenants. There is an issue that
did come up recently, very recently, that was brought up by the Planning,
Planning Department to the Department of Corporation Counsel. So, at this time,
Mr. Chair, I'd like to defer to Mr. Kushi to explain any questions that may have
arisen.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair. Council Members, I direct your attention to, attached to
your resolution approving is the Exhibit A, Requested Waivers and Exemptions.
And the first one is the one we need to talk about entitled, State Land Use District
Boundary Amendment. As you read through it, in essence, let me summarize
what we've done here. And, and, and, and maybe to clarify, the wording of this
exemption is from the Department's, Housings' Department, and my office's
recommendation and not from the applicant. The applicant just wants to get it
done.
But, anyway, technically what this basically says is that the, the density of the
project exceeds the current rural designation from the State Land Use
Commission. In Rural Districts, they should have at least half an acre per lot.
The proposed project, the project proposes 10,000 square foot lots; 14 of them.
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What we've done here is saying that the, that this body consider an exemption
from having the applicant get a Land Use District boundary amendment from
Rural to Urban. Urban is the proper designation for this type of projects.
We've set forth that the requested exemption is from a County Code Chapter,
Chapter 19.68 entitled State Land Use District Boundaries, and the reference
statutory section is Section 205-3.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes. What it is here is
that the, the size of the, overall size of the entire project is 6.529 acres. The State
Land Use Commission Rules and Regulations or Statutes say that anything 15
acres or less for district boundary amendments shall be referred to the appropriate
County legislative body, bodies. In our, Maui County has enacted a separate
chapter in its Maui County Code, 19.68, to deal with these procedures. The State
Land Use law also says that anything 15 acres and above, specifically Spencer
projects, Puunoa, if it had passed, would have to go to the Land Use Commission
by virtue of Section 205-4. 205-4, HRS, is directly quoted in Section 201G-118.
It is our position that the State Land Use Commission would have jurisdiction for
district boundary amendments for big projects, for big areas. In this case, if this
project were not before you and they wanted to come for, they needed a district
boundary amendment, they would go to the Maui Planning Commission, then
they would go to Planning Commission hearings. And the ultimate body would
be this body to grant that district boundary amendment. And that process,
requires an ordinance, requires a public hearing before the Planning Commission,
then two readings before this body. And that would never occur within 45 days.
This is the intent and, uh, of us requesting the exemption from that process.

Now, having said all of that, there may be a question as to State jurisdiction. And
I believe the Planning Department has brought that up before my office and
Ms. Lee's office. And, frankly, we may be wrong. We may be of the minority
position that the State Land Use Commission wants jurisdiction over everything.
Okay. If that happens, it happens, and the applicant would have to go through its
processes. Now, what that does to the project, I don't know. But we are asking
that this body take our recommendation and, and grant this waiver in the event
that we are right. If we are wrong, then the Planning Department, which has
jurisdiction over State Land Use Regulations, if we're wrong, will not issue a
building permit. Okay. This is our position. You may want to hear from the
Planning Department representatives.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any questions for Mr. Kushi? Then perhaps we should take
Mr. Kushi's recommendation, and if we could ask Planning to also comment on,
on the item. That.
And representing the Planning Department is
Ms. Robyn Loudermilk.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Good morning, Council Members. What Mr. Kushi had brought
up, I'd just like to provide some background. First of all, the Planning
Department did provide comments on this project based on your July 2003
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application. In that application, there was a representation that the project would
come for a district boundary amendment and that the waivers, the remaining
waivers would have to do with the community plan and the zoning. On March 8th
of this year, the Department received the public hearing notice for this particular
project indicating that a public, one, that a 201G application has been filed, and,
two, that a public hearing will be held in Hana on March 16t \ and that a follow up
to that meeting would be held here today. At that time, the Department went up
to the Office of Council Services to see the, the current proposal. The significant
change was that there was a request for a waiver from a district boundary
amendment, thus, I had been in contact with Mr. Kushi and as well as Ed,
Ed Okubo of the Housing Office. One, if it was always intended to waive the
district boundary amendment, the Planning Department would have brought forth
the issues before you today that we do not believe at this point in time that the
County can waive any of the requirements of Chapter 205.
And Ed Kushi and myself have been going back and forth. That really has been,
has been a learning process. As part of this, I contacted both Janice Takahashi.
She's the Planner with Housing Finance Development Corporation who handles
many of the 201G projects either through, proposed through her office or she,
she's the liaison with the various counties, as well as Tony Ching who is the
Executive Director of the Land Use Commission.
In response to questions from Janice Takahashi, this is the first 201G project that
their office has been made aware of in the State Rural District. The 201G projects
normally fall within lands designated Urban by the State Land Use Commission,
or they are in lands designated Agriculture by the State Land Use Commission.
For lands designated Agriculture, all of the projects have been large projects.
Fifty plus acres approximately. So these projects, once they receive approval
from the respective counties for those exemptions, then go to the State Land Use
District Boundary Commission for a district boundary amendment.
And why is that? Why, why are those projects in the State Agricultural District
required to get a district boundary amendment? It's basically for two reasons.
First of all, minimum lot size and permitted uses. In the State Ag District, your
minimum lot size, according to State law, is one acre. A minimum of one acre.
Usually, you have projects that are similar in scope to this or even smaller
regarding minimum lot size. And then secondly, uses. Your uses are very
specific in State Agricultural Districts. Single-family residences are not outright
permitted uses.
Regarding the acreage requirement and the sections that Ed Kushi had referred to,
in talking with Tony Ching of the State Land Use Commission, you do a district
boundary either one of two ways. You do it a straight 205, Chapter 205, which in
this case would be the process what Ed had described as part of this waiver.
There's a provision in Section 205-3.1 delegating the authority to the respective
counties for projects 15 acres or less. However, what is not in that Section, it
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does not specify 201G projects at all. So that would, if you go through the 205
process, that would be the, the normal process that Ed had described to you
regarding going to the Commission, the public hearings, and then coming before
here. In the 201G-18 Section, that sets forth the process regarding the waivers. In
Section No.4, it indicates that land use district boundary amendments or Land
Use Commission approval is required pursuant to the Section in Chapter 205
which is 205-4 that refers to projects 15 acres or greater. And those projects
automatically go before the Land Use Commission. It is in that Section that refers
back to the 201G project.
So the question comes is this a straight 201G project. If so, you cannot mix the,
the acreage requirement as we do with the regular 205. Now that's the ... that's
the opinion of the Executive Director. I've been working with Ed Kushi on this. I
have not been able to talk to the Corporation Counsels that advise the Planning
Department. But in consultation with the, the planner who originally worked on
this and other planners in the Department, it isn't either/or and it's, and this is a
project that the Department does support. It's just that we were blindsided that
this one waiver emerged and that we, we were not aware of it until the application
was filed with the Council.
Where does a district boundary amendment, how does it fit into the 201G project?
As Ed Kushi had indicated, and if your property is designated Rural by the Land
Use Commission, same as the State Agricultural District, you have minimum lot
size. And in this case, it's a half-acre minimum lot size. And that lot size is set
forth by the State statute. The question becomes, is it the jurisdiction of the
respective county to be able to waive a State statute or does it have to go before
the State Land Use Commission. In the eyes of the State Land Use Commission,
waivers to minimum lot sizes can come before the Commission, though it's not
explicit. They liken it to the County equivalent of maybe a County Special Use or
a Conditional Permit in that you want to keep the underlying land use as it is. But
because it's a special situation in this case, a 201 G project, that is appropriate for
this location that a waiver from the minimum lot size would, should be asked for
from the Commission. And the processing of that would be within the 45 days.
And, and so this, these are basically the two areas of, of disagreement with the
Planning Department at, at this point in time. And as Ed indicated, the Planning
Department, we are tasked with enforcing Chapter 205 including the minimum lot
sizes. Should it be determined that the County does have the authority to waive
the district boundary amendment, as well as the minimum lot size, then the
Planning Department will be able to sign off on the building permit for the
respective houses. However, if it's determined that we do not have the authority
for either one, the Planning Department would not be able to sign off on these
building permits until those, either the waiver to the minimum lot size has been
approved by the appropriate entity or that a district boundary amendment from
Rural to Urban has been approved by the appropriate entity.
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And that's what brings us here today from the Planning Department. Again, we
are in support of the project. We think the scope and the scale is appropriate for
Hana, that the exemptions being granted under the County Codes are appropriate.
We were very surprised that such a significant change as a, of a waiver was not
brought to our attention earlier so that it would be resolved. But it is now before
us, so we would be working with Housing and Human Concerns and the
Corporation Counsel to ensure that this gets resolved in the right manner and that
it's pono for everybody.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Starting off ... go ahead, Ed.
MR. KUSHI: Yes. Mr. Chair, for the record, I confirm what Robyn just said and, and,
and we've been trying to, you know, work around this or work through this but,
you know, we, we reached a roadblock. But for the record, I must say that, you
know, some of you here or some of you who are not here will ask us why didn't
you get your, you know, your act together before you submitted this and, you
know, why, why put the whole burden on you right, on all of you right now.
Well, you know, this thing is a relatively new issue. It's a novel issue. It may
involve State versus home rule. This doesn't come up all the time and especially
with this process if we were to get our act together and resolve it, you would pass
the 90-day rule. So just for the record, when, when any of you ask that question
that's the answer.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to add that, we fundamentally disagree
with the Planning Department. We appreciate their input. We didn't attempt to
blinds ide anybody. A lot of times applications evolve, constantly changing before
a final submittal. There was no intent to ignore any, any rules, regulations,
statutes, codes, anything like that at all. But we still appreciate the, the sincerity
and dedication of, of Robyn, but we believe that this project can go forward. We,
this Council, approved the West Maui Resource Center on Ag land and look what
we built there. Look what we built there. You know, multi-family units,
childcare centers, offices, and they all got their building permits signed off by the
Planning Department. You see. So now we're talking about a 14-unit self-help
housing project where a lot of families are counting on this project, and we need
to really move this project forward. We have precedence. We passed the West
Maui Resource Center project, five acres on Ag land. Look at all the multiple
uses we have. Did we follow any of the Ag standards? No we didn't because our
interpretation is that we have control over anything 15 acres and below. So I, I
urge this body to please take into serious consideration the comments and, and the
arguments made by our Corporation Counsel and to move the project forward.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Lee. Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I totally understand what the issue is and the
importance of being able to move this forward. I guess the logical question would
be that, let's say, we approve it with the waiver and we agree with Mr. Kushi in
terms of our support because of what has occurred in the past setting precedent.
What would be the next challenge? You know, who is going to challenge this? Is
it going to be a suit, you know, from some member of the community? Is it going
to be someone, you know, who lives in the area who's going to say, oh, I don't
want this because, you know, my district right next door is rural; and, therefore,
this is inconsistent. You know, so I guess what I'm trying to say is, who is going
to challenge this and why?
And the purpose of basically the district boundary amendment and the public
hearing process is to gather public input to allow the process to go forward to
allow any party that has any kind of concern to either have that addressed or
mitigated in some measure. So, I mean, I even look at what's going on on our
Agricultural lands, Mr. Chair, right now, with no environmental assessment
whatsoever, no district boundary amendment. Every kind of thing known to man
going on on our Agricultural lands, which to me the Planning Department is really
being way too liberal in enforcing Chapter HRS, you know, in Chapter 205 under
HRS. So I'm looking at what is the purpose of this.
And I understand completely, you know, the Planning Department's, let's say this
is unique, it's unusual, well, I guess what, and I probably should say these are, you
know, things to throw out there for your consideration. But in situations like this,
I think it might be appropriate that when this unique situation has occurred to ask
at that point in time, we have moved in this manner. Ask this of the State and say,
we would like the law made more specific and consistent with regard to this
particular issue because we have dealt with this before in this particular manner.
We've dealt with this in this way and because there seems to be some concern on
the part of the Planning Department in a disagreement perhaps with Corporation
Counsel in the interpretation of the law. Can you clean up the language of the law
so that there is no doubt whatsoever, and then do this in the future?
But I think right now, I agree with Alice. I also agree with the concerns that
Robyn has raised, but because they don't know, I'm looking at the benefit and
weighing that versus the problems that will be created. And because I think the
law doesn't specifically disallow it that what I'd prefer is to have it handled in a
way that we're going to handle it this way. But in the future, Legislators at the
State or Federal level, please, help us to at least tighten up that language, make it
abundantly clear what you meant and then clarify what our role is. Because it's
always been my understanding that everything 15 acres or under is our kuleana.
That's the way we did the Maui Preparatory Academy. That's the way, you know,
we've dealt with other issues. And even if we had to, let's say, the other
mechanism at the County Council level is, when we initiate a community plan
change at this level, that's in our ordinances that we can do that. So I don't really
see this as a problem that doesn't have a potential solution. So that would be my
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potential solution and I hope that, you know, we can work our way through this,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Kushi, would you like to,
are you prepared to, to provide comment to Ms. Johnson's queries?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, if I understood Member Johnson's questions on what, what can
happen, you know, or as, as the Planning Department, Robyn said, you know, if
their, after consultation with the appropriate State agencies, if their position is
strong enough to believe and enforce it, they will not sign off or issue a building
permit. On the other hand, if they see the light and agree with us, they would sign
off on the building permit or issue a building permit. At that point in time, if you
have a contest, I would imagine one of two things. One could file, a person with
standing, which is relatively the standards to have standings is quite liberal. You
could petition the Land Use Commission or the Planning Department or Planning
Commission for a declaratory order, basically, administrative procedure saying
that, you know, I think you're wrong. This, these are the issues. I live next door.
I think they gotta go through a district boundary amendment, then have that issue
heard. Either the Land Use Commission or the Planning Commission will then
make a decision. If that person is still not satisfied, he could appeal at the Circuit
Court. So there are remedies. It may come down to, you know, the State
Attorney General interpreting these laws, but we've taken a position that this is
how it reads. And I agree with you that, you know, it needs to be cleaned up in
terms of the relationship with the 201G project versus a district boundary
amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate that, Mr. Kushi. And, Mr. Chair, if
we could have a comment, you know, perhaps after what, you know, Ed has said
and what I've said from Robyn to see if there's any kind of way that we might be
able to get the Planning Department to help us work through this issue.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Loudermilk, are you prepared to comment?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes. As I indicated before, this is a project that the Department
does support. I am very curious and I'll double check on the West Maui Resource
Center because I hope we did issue the building permits correctly. There, you
know, Planning Department would, would more than happy to assist Council for
the next legislative session in terms of ways to clean up the 201G and the 205 to,
to make it clear, the various delegations of authority.
And, you know, and I think that is appropriate what Ed had indicated regarding
remedies. That is true the Planning Department will not go before the Land Use
Commission and ask for a declaratory order. But the, the issue could remotely
emerge either before the Land Use Commission or the respective, in this case,
Maui Planning Commission. So then they would delegate it to the Hana Advisory
Committee. At this point in time, the Department are not, is not aware of any
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individuals or any groups who will, who, who will be doing that. What we just
want to strive for is consistency across the board.
And, and in regarding to comments regarding Ag Districts, there may be other
projects that are self help or similar that they look like they're in the Agricultural
District. But if they're Hawaiian Homelands, they're not subject to State land use
law or County land use laws or zoning. Maybe the underlying zoning is
Agriculture but the State Land Use District is Urban. So there's a variety of
situations out there that, that come before us and whatever means the Department
can work with Council, Corporation Counsel, as well as the Land Use
Commission and our State representatives to see, you know, let's, let's try to clean
it up. Just, just make it very clear because it's, in the 201G it doesn't even
indicate that the respective counties can do expedited processing for DBA's. And
if that's the intent then it needs to be.. .(CHANGE TAPE) . .. they talk about the
45-day limit but it's only the Land Use Commission. We'll, if we're going to, if
for some reason the, the project may be in a location where it, it's determined that
a district boundary amendment is warranted versus being waived, the County
doesn't, it's not clear whether the County has the ability for this expedited process
that's been given to the Land Use Commission. And anything that can be done to
clean up the language and allow for all agencies to be consistent in terms of
interpretation and implementation, the Department will be willing and able to
assist with that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Robyn. And I think also,
Mr. Chair, that because, recently, it's more specifically, the Maui Preparatory
Academy was a district boundary amendment, you know, change in zoning
community plan amendment that was introduced by the Council. Granted that
goes through a slightly different process 'cause it goes back through the Planning
Commission. I think that because it's Council initiated and because, you know,
this has gone through an environmental assessment--it's gone through review by
many of the agencies, which would basically just be recommenting on the things
that they've already commented on--I think that's the protection that I'm assuming
most people are looking for is was this properly reviewed, was it looked at by
those people who would have some input. And so I look at it in that way that it
has been reviewed.
And I am, Mr. Chair, willing to support at this particular point in time the
recommendation that has been made by Mr. Kushi as to allowing that particular
exemption to go forward. I'm very inclined to do that. And then just, you know,
address the issue so that we layout very clearly for the State and for the State
Land Use Commission as well as the legislation that needs to be amended what it
is that we need to achieve so that in the future when this occurs, it won't be
something that we're stuck with. So, and also I guess, the statute basically
provides on 201G that it can go through the County or the State process. So, you
know, so to me I see it's really something that we haven't been real happy with the
201G process and the lack of I guess direction and, you know, tightness of the
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ordinances or the statutes. So I would look forward to addressing that.
Mr. Chair, I'm willing to support this. Thank you.

But,

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Member Johnson. And also, the Chair will be
asking Corp Counsel to, to provide us with a written opinion regarding this
matter. And also, Members, at this point if there is no objections, the Chair would
like to ask Ms. Shay to come back down again so she may be able to provide a
brief comment on what the discussion occurring because it has direct bearing,
Ms. Shay, on whether your project moves forward at this particular point.
MS. SHAY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. First of all, as has been stated here, this project has
gone through an enormous amount of review since 2002. And we did do the
Environmental Assessment, and it was circulated and it was approved by the
County and by the Federal government. And the 201G application came to the
County July 2003. Twenty-one copies that were circulated to all the departments.
There was no intent for it not being very clear on all the exemptions that we were
going to ask for. So we should have heard from the Planning Department a long
time ago if there was a problem.
Secondly, I was in the original group 25 years ago that crafted the legislation for
201G, which was 201E and then 201G, and, well, 359G originally. And the
whole intent of that legislation is so that you can expedite the approval. It
supercedes all the planning, subdivision and requirements at the County level, at
the State Land Use Commission, and so forth so that you can expedite your
approvals. That's the whole point of 201G. And I've done 201G projects
successfully in the five subdivisions that we've built. We've been able to do
everything at the County level. We haven't had to go through the State Land Use
Commission. So, I mean that's the whole point of 201G. If you can only get
some of the exemptions but you have to go back to LUC for some of it, there's no
point of 201G. That's the whole point of the law.
And, thirdly, if we do have to go through the Land Use Commission and a lot of
other planning commissions and so forth, the project is not going to go forward.
We are not going to be able to hold our funding. Our funding is going to be
terminated in about a month if we don't get all of our approvals and acquire
property. And I don't believe that the landowner is going to be able to hang on
that much longer because he's, first of all, getting a 50 percent discount and he's
already been to the Land Use Commission five years ago. So, you know, it's
basically going to kill the project if we don't get the approval. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Ms. Shay. Thank you. Members, any
additional comments for any of the departments with us this morning? Hearing
none. For the record, Members, we did receive just a few minutes ago a copy of a
petition from the residents in Hana. Copies are being made for all of you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, is that in support of the project
I'm assuming?
CHAIR MATEO: It's supporting.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: It's supporting the project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. And I appreciate being able to
speak although I'm not a Member of your Committee. The aforementioned
petition is in support, and we just got this this morning and that's why the
Members are getting it so late. And I just had a little time to go over it. I
recognize every name on this petition. Every name on this petition is a resident of
Hana. There's not one name on this petition that is not. And all of these people,
these 125 people need housing. We only have 14 today, but we are thankful for
the 14 people that are going to be able to have their own home. And it's a good
start.
It's something that we truly need, and I appreciate the Chair
expediating [sic] the process, helping to have this meeting today. And I would
urge the Members to please support this and get it out.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: May I have a short recess?
CHAIR MATEO: Sure. Recess. . .. (gavel) ...

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:15 a.m.
10:22 a.m.

CHAIR MATEO: ... (gavel). .. Meeting will reconvene. Members, any additional
questions for the representative of, representatives of the various departments here
with us this morning? Seeing none. If there is no more questions or comments by
the Members, the Chair is ready for, to make a recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Go ahead. We're waiting.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Members.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We're so anxious.
CHAIR MATEO: The Chair would recommend that the resolutions entitled, Approving
Helani Gardens Subdivision II Housing Project Pursuant to Section 201G-118,
Hawaii Revised Statutes, be adopted. And number two, that the resolution
entitled, Disapproving the Helani Gardens Subdivision II Housing Project
Pursuant to Section 201G-118, Hawaii Revised Statutes, also be forwarded to the
Council for consideration if the Council does not approve this project.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MATEO:
It's been moved and, by Member Pontanilla;
Member Tavares. Any discussion? Ms. Johnson.

second by

COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. Does it include the filing of
the item also?
CHAIR MATEO: Member Johnson. Member Tavares, I'm sorry. We are not going to
be filing this particular item ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, you're just closing it. Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: ... as it serves as an umbrella item for the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I'm wondering in this particular
situation, I know where there's been some controversy on other measures where it
has been sent on to the full Council with both of the resolutions. It tantamount to
not making a recommendation. I wonder if it would be appropriate in this
particular situation that we move only on the one and if that is a procedural
problem, you know, with, let's say, only one resolution moving forward and not
the other, I'd like to hear from Corp ... , Corp ... , Corporation Counsel because I
have no problem with just moving on the one to make it clearer that we are
recommending that this be approved.
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CHAIR MATEO:
have ...

Thank you.

Mr. Kushi, could you respond?

Oh, I'm sorry, let's

MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, I'll defer to your staff.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. T AGUCHI: Thank you, Chair Mateo. Mainly, the reason why the second
resolution is being forwarded is to provide the Council an option to disapprove
the project. In this case, the way the recommendation is worded, you are
approving the project, but because of the fact that a 201G project if it's not
approved, I mean if it's not disapproved in the 45-day period it's automatically
approved. So, in other words, there would be no way that the Council could
disapprove it should the full Council decide to disapprove the project. So as a
courtesy so that the Council can make that final decision, it's being forwarded
along with the recommendation for approval.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So that clarifies why we're sending both
forward but that the clear intent is that we are going to approve this with the
recommendations as to the waivers.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I appreciate that and I think the issue that
was raised with letting the Council make the final decision, I think that's fine.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, all those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Opposed. Thank you very much.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

ACTION:

Councilmember Johnson~
and Chair Mateo.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.

Pontanilla~

Tavares~

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HELANI
GARDENS
SUBDIVISION II HOUSING
PROJECT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 201G-118~ HAWAII REVISED
STATUTES; and
FORWARDING RESOLUTION DISAPPROVING THE
HELANI GARDENS SUBDIVISION II HOUSING PROJECT
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PURSUANT TO SECTION 201G-118, HA WAIl REVISED
STATUTES, TO THE COUNCIL FOR CONSIDERATION IF
THE COUNCIL DOES NOT APPROVE THE PROJECT

CHAIR MATEO: Members, at this particular point are there any announcements?
Hearing none. Thank you all very much, Members. And to the departments,
thank you very much. Ms. Shay, thank you for being here with us this morning.
This meeting is adjourned .... (gavel). ..
10:28 a.m.

ADJOURNED:

APPROVED:
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